
BOONE COUNTY PLANNING, ZONING AND BUILDING COMMITTEE 
Agenda 

Wednesday, December 7, 2016 
Boone County Administrative Campus 

County Board Room 
6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 
Members:  Staff: 
Denny Ellingson, Chairman  Hilary Arther, Land Use Planner  
Marshall Newhouse, Vice-Chairman 
Raymond Larson 
Brad Stark 
Jessica Muellner 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

MINUTES:  Approval of Minutes from the October 5, 2016 meeting.  

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  

NEW BUSINESS:   

22-2016; Erickson, 431-433 Pembroke Road SW:  The applicant is requesting approval of
the re-plat of Lots 265 and 266 of Candlewick Lake, Unit 4 into Lot GG, Unit 4 and the
vacation of the utility/drainage easement between the two lots.
Staff (Approval); PZB ( ); CB ( )

OTHER BUSINESS:  None 

DISCUSSION:   

COMMUNICATIONS/PLANNING REPORTS:  Staff Report 

ADJOURNMENT 

1



BOONE COUNTY 
PLANNING, ZONING, AND BUILDING COMMITTEE 

Minutes 
October 5, 2016 

County Board Room 
6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL: 
Committee Members Present:    Staff Present: 
Denny Ellingson, CHM     Ken Terrinoni, County Administrator 
Cory Lind    Hilary Arther, Land Use Planner 
Brad Stark 
Raymond Larson   Ex-Officio Present: 

  Bob Walberg 
Absent: Kenny Freeman  

With a quorum present, Chairman Ellingson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

AGENDA: 
It was moved and seconded (Stark/Larson) to approve the October 5, 2016 agenda.  The motion carried 
with a 4-0 voice vote.  

MINUTES:  
It was moved and seconded (Lind/Larson) to approve the minutes of the September 7, 2016 meeting. 
The motion carried with a 4-0 voice vote. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Mr. Herbest the attorney representing Tierney Farms, a neighboring property to Mr. Goad at 11860 
Illinois Route 173 Capron, Illinois reviewed his opposition to case 18-2016 asking to send it back to the 
Zoning Board of Appeal for additional comment and review.    

Mr. Ellingson stated the process of a planning appeal. The Planning, Zoning, and Building Committee 
cannot vote to have this item return to the Zoning Board of Appeals that is The County Board’s 
responsibility.  

UNFINISEHD BUSINESS: 

18-2016; Goad:   The application of Robert O. Goad and Betty Goad, 113 Galahad Court SE, Poplar 
Grove, IL 61065, requesting a special use permit under Section 2.7 (Special Uses) and Sub-Section 3.16.1 
(Table of Permitted Uses of the Boone County Zoning Ordinance to allow an auction sales yard at 11860 
Illinois Route 173, Capron Illinois, 61012, in the A1 Zoning Board of Appeals August 23, 2016 Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 (Agricultural Preservation) Zoning District in unincorporated Boone Township, Boone County, 
Illinois. (PIN: 04-01-400-004) and (PIN: 04-01-400-006). 

2



Ms. Arther explained what had happened at the Zoning Board of Appeals on September 27th, and 
described how the conditions came about for the applicant. She also read aloud all the conditions that 
had been added along with the definition of a motor vehicle defined by States Attorney Michelle 
Courier. Ms. Barber the attorney for the applicant Robert Goad went over why Mr. Goad’s request is 
valid and a respectable use of land. Along with how all the conditions that were added  and would 
alleviate the neighbors’ concerns.  

Mr. Lind reviewed how many employees Mr. Goad had and clarified that he does pay sales tax. Ms. 
Arther explained that conditions were created throughout the meeting while testimonies were given. 
Mr. Stark clarified that the application had one set of regulation coming to the Zoning Board of Appeals 
and left with another set of regulations and that the applicant approved of that. Mr. Lind wanted to 
make sure that all the departments will review this application prior to approval, and that the special 
use will stay with applicant.  

Motion was made and seconded (Stark / Lind) to approve case 18-2016. 

Mr. Walberg spoke up about the Illinois Route 173 Corridor Plan and how he thinks it should be 
considered when approving this application. The committee discussed standards and setbacks that 
would be required if the Corridor Plan was added in to the conditions.  

A motion was made and seconded (Lind/Stark) to amend the previous motion adding a condition for the 
Illinois 173 Corridor Plan being addressed. Further discussion was had on what the standards should be.  

Ms. Arther spoke up with a proposed condition encompassing the concerns the committee had. She 
stated “All improvements for applicant’s proposal shall include Illinois Route 173 Corridor Plan.” A 
motion was made and seconded (Lind/Stark) to approve Ms. Arther’s suggestion was added to the 
applicants Special Use Conditions. Mr. Ellington asked to have some standards from the Corridor Plan 
for the next County Board meeting.  

A motion was made to amend the main motion, the motion carried with a 4-0 voice vote.  
A motion was made to approve the amended main motion as it reads now.  The motion carried with a 4-
0 voice vote. 

Mr. Larson left at 6:47 p.m. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

19-2016; Thomas: The applicant William C. Thomas, 6745 Auburn Road, Rockford IL 61101, is 
requesting a zoning map amendment under Sub-Section 2.12.2.C (Amending the Zoning Map/Special 
Uses) of Section 2.10 (Text and Map Amendments, Comprehensive Plan Amendments) of Chapter 2 
(Administration, Enforcement, and Procedures) and Section 3.11 (Light Industrial District) of Chapter 3 
(Districts and General Provisions) of the Boone County Zoning Ordinance to amend the Boone County 
Zoning Map from R-1 (Single Family Residential District) and I-1 (Light Industrial District) to I-1 (Light 
Industrial District) for the property located at 1401 Ipsen Road, Belvidere, Illinois, 61008 in 
unincorporated Flora Township, Boone County, Illinois. (PIN: 07-05-100-006). 

No discussion was had on this case. 

3



A motion made and seconded (Lind/Stark) to approve case 19-2016.  The motion carried with a 3-0 voice 
vote.  

OTHER BUSINESS: N/A 

DISCUSSION: N/A 

COMMUNICATIONS/PLANNING REPORTS: N/A 

PREVIIOUS CASE UPDATE: N/A 

STAFF REPORT: N/A 

ADJORNMENT:  

It was moved and seconded (Lind/Stark) to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting was adjourned at 6:51 
p.m.

Recorded by: Reviewed by: 

____________________________  _______________________________ 
Hilary Arther  Ken Terrinoni 
Land Use Planner    County Administrator 

4



BOONE COUNTY  
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

1212 Logan Avenue, Suite 102, Belvidere, Illinois, 61008 (815) 547-4770 Fax (815) 547-3579 

  November 29, 2016 

ADVISORY REPORT 

CASE NO:  22-2016   APPLICANT:  Erickson; 433 Pembroke Road SW 

REQUEST: 
The applicant is seeking plat approval for combining Lots 265 and 266 of Candlewick Lake, Unit 
4 into Lot GG, Unit 4.  The applicant is also requesting the vacation of the utility/drainage 
easement between the two lots. 

LOCATION: 
The subject property is located at 431-433 Pembroke Road, Poplar Grove, IL 61065 
(PINs: 03-27-305-030 and 03-27-305-031).  See the attached location and aerial maps. 

BACKGROUND: 
The re-plat of the above noted lots will reduce monthly utility charges assessed by Aqua 
America for the property owner and will allow the property owner to utilize the subject properties 
as one lot.  The request to vacate the easement will remove any barriers that are currently 
located between the two lots.  Requests for comments were forwarded to the appropriate review 
agencies.  Comments were received from Frontier Communications and the Boone County 
Health Department. 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS: 
The proposed re-plat of Lots 265 and 266 of Candlewick Lake Unit 4 to Lot GG, Unit 4 is in 
conformance with the Boone County subdivision and zoning codes. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommends the approval of case number 22-2016 subject to the following 
conditions: 

1. PINs (PINs: 03-27-305-030 and 03-27-305-031) of the property shall be shown on the plat.

2. The following comments are in relation to the signature blocks depicted on the Replat:

• The utility block incorrectly refers to Verizon North Inc.  The correct company is
Frontier Communications.

• The Plat Committee signature certificate is missing.

Submitted by: 

___________________________ 
Hilary Arther, Land Use Planner 

5



ATTACHMENTS 

1. Location Map by Planning Staff

2. Aerial Photo by Planning Staff

3. Letter from William Hatfield, Boone County Health Department,
November 7, 2016

4. Letter from Donald Belmore, Frontier Communications, November
8, 2016

5. Plat Committee Certificate

6. Plat of Lot GG Candlewick Lake, Unit 4

6



7



8



9



10



Cand lewi ck Lake
Boo ne Lake

¬«T-21

¬«T-21

")7

CALEDONIA RD

DAWSON LAKE RD

CANDLEWICK DR SW

PRAIRIE RD

MARQUETTE DR SW

PEMBROKE RD SW

NEWBURY LN
BENEDICT DR SW

GA
BL

ES
 D

R S
W

BRIAR CLIFF ST SW

REDMAN WAY SW

HA
ST

IN
GS

 W
AY

 SW

BIRCH DR SW

TA
LL

AD
EG

A D
R 

SW

KING HENRY RD. SE

PRAIRIE MEADOW WAY

THORNHILL DR SW

ARROW
W

OOD LN

GRIFFIN PL SW

WINESAP ST SW

RI
CH

AR
D 

CT
. S

E

POSEIDON LN SW

SQUIRE LN SE

FALCON WAY SW

PARTRIDGE CT SW

PRAIRIE RD

.
1 inch = 855 feet 11



P
E

M
B

R
O

K
E

 R
D

 S
W

H
A

S
T

IN
G

S
 W

A
Y

 S
W

BENEDICT DR SW

E
L

T
A

 D
R

 S
W

M
A

R
Q

U
E

T
T

E
 D

R
 SW

.
1 inch = 134 feet 12



13



1

Hilary Arther

From: Belmore, Donald <donald.j.belmore@ftr.com>
Sent: Tuesday, November 08, 2016 12:04 PM
To: Hilary Arther
Subject: Case 22-2016; Re-plat of Lots 265 and 266 Unit 4 Candlewick Lake

Hi Hilary, 

Verizon North Inc. should be changed to Frontier North Inc. within the Easement provisions of the replat of lots 265 and 
266 in Candlewick Lake unit 4.  Other than the name change, Frontier does not have any objections to the replat. 

Thanks, 

Don Belmore 
Specialist Engineer, OSP Engineering 
Frontier Communications 
2239 Newburg Rd  
Belvidere, IL 61008 
815‐544‐6171(o) 
815‐544‐4685(f) 
donald.j.belmore@ftr.com 

“I Can Help You!” 

This communication is confidential. Frontier only sends and receives email on the basis of the terms set 
out at http://www.frontier.com/email_disclaimer. 

14



15




	PZB AGENDA 12-7-16
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
	OTHER BUSINESS:  None
	DISCUSSION:

	COMMUNICATIONS/PLANNING REPORTS:  Staff Report
	ADJOURNMENT


	PZB MINUTES 10-5-2016
	ROLL CALL:

	REPORT 22-2016
	1212 Logan Avenue, Suite 102, Belvidere, Illinois, 61008 (815) 547-4770 Fax (815) 547-3579
	November 29, 2016
	ADVISORY REPORT
	Submitted by:
	ATTACHMENTS



	App 22-2016
	433 Pembroke Road SW sub
	433 Pembroke Road SW
	Sig Block Replat
	Memo Style



